Dedham School Building Rehabilitation Committee

Hosted at the Dedham Town Hall and via Zoom

SBRC Meeting Minutes — Approved
Monday August 26, 2024 - 6:30 PM

Members present:

(A= attended Meeting; P= attended partial meeting)

Voting Members:

Jonathan Levi Associates
(Designer):

Anthony Rodriguez, Ex Officio (AR)

A | John Tocci, Chair (JT) A| Jonathan Levi (JL) Kaitlyn DeStefano, Ex Officio (KD)
A | John Heffernan, Vice Chair (JH) A| Philip Gray (PG) Shannan Kavanagh, Ex Officio (SK)
A | Erin Boles Welsh, Select Board A| Carol Harris (CH) Kerri Bryant, Ex Officio KB)
(EW)
A | Sara Rosenthal (EW) Via Zoom Other: Dr. lan Kelley, Deputy
Superintendent (IK)
A | Mayanne MacDonald Briggs, A| Matt Haffner, Director of School Committee:
School Committee (MMB) Facilities (MH)
A | Stephen Acosta, School A| Kimberly Hermesch, Oakdale Christopher Polito, Member
Committee (SA) School Principal (KH)
A | Phillip Gonzalez (PG) A| Ms. Nan Murphy, Superintendent Dr. Leah Flynn Gallant, Member
of Schools (non-voting) (NM)
VERTEX: Owners Project Jennifer McGowan, Greenlodge Laurie Twomey, Member Via Zoom
Manager (OPM) School Principal (JM)
A | Jon Lemieux, Project Director (JL) Katherine Duceman, Ex Officio Joshua Langmead, Member
(KD)
Stephen Theran, Sr. Project A| Steven Popper, Ex Officio (SP) William Walsh, Member
Manager (ST)
A | Anissa Ellis, Project Manager (AE) | A| Kat Philipe, Ex Officio (KP)

Distribution: SRBC Members and other attendees

1.

Old Business/Approval of Minutes:

SECOND: by Mr. Acosta

Vote 6-0-1. Ms. Boles Welsh abstains.

Mr. Tocci requested approval of meeting minutes from the June 3, 2024, meeting.
MOTION: to approve the June 3, 2024, Minutes by Mr. Heffernan.

Mr. Tocci requested approval of meeting minutes from the June 10, 2024, meeting. He noted he had
a few changes for typos and clarification on the property at the back of the Oakdale School near
Lincoln Street

MOTION: to approve the June 10, 2024, minutes with changes by Mr. Heffernan.
SECOND: by Ms. MacDonald Briggs
Vote 6-0-1. Ms. Boles Welsh abstains.

Mr. Tocci requested approval of meeting minutes from the July 29, 2024, meeting. He noted the
notes should be clarified to state the Reimbursement should be 25%.

MOTION: to approve the July 29, 2024, minutes with changes by Mr. Gonzalez.

SECOND: by Ms. Boles Welsh.

Vote 7-0-0. Motion passes unanimously.

SBRC Meeting Minutes — August 26, 2024




Presentations JLA on project history and design update:

Mr. Levi presented an animation of the project design from the first alternatives reviewed a year
ago and how they have progressed into what we have today, the Option D Core Cluster building. The
animation also includes review of the interior floor plans and site plans and the various changes
made over the last year. Mr. Levi noted that many of these changes resulted in lowered
construction costs. He also noted that the team increased the landscape buffer between the
neighbors and the building as requested.

Mr. Levi reviewed the grading contours of the existing site and how it will change with the
construction of the building. He noted there is a retaining wall required at the rear of the new
school between the abutting property and the Oakdale site. Mr. Levi noted there are some
neighborhood improvements incorporated into the project budget. They are listed as “alternates”
and include new sidewalks, curbing, and paving along Madison Street. He then reviewed the
building floor plans.

Mr. Levi reviewed some renderings of the building from the exterior at various angles and from
various locations along Madison Street. He then narrated the “fly through” video created by the JLA
team.

Ms. Boles Welsh asked if some of the parking could be wrapped around the field to improve access
to the fields.
Mr. Levi confirmed it is a possibility.

Ms. Boles Welsh asked about the scope of the neighborhood improvements and if the reduced
scope of the improvements and the revised cost is reflected in the budget?

Mr. Lemieux stated it is not yet but they will be updating the budget and will capture the revised
pricing in the updated budget.

Ms. MacDonald Briggs asked if the baseball field is geared toward the U11 age group.

Mr. Gonzalez stated it is for 12 years and under and noted it is a 60’ base path.

Ms. Boles Welsh asked if the door on the east side of the building can be used for drop off/pick up?
Mr. Levi stated it has the ability to be, it’s up to the building operations.

Mr. Langmead stated he thinks the amount of glass in the cafeteria presents some safety concerns
and he asked if there are multiple exits?

Mr. Levi stated the number of exits is governed by code and there are multiple exits. The amount of
glass can be debated.

Mr. Langmead noted he thinks there should be some consideration about the window shades and
them moving bottom up.

Ms. Hermesch asked if the stage in the gymatorium can be moved to the far end of the gym?

Mr. Levi stated they can review that further and it is possible.

Mr. Langmead noted his concern about the teacher planning spaces and that they will not be used
as intended.

Mr. Gonzalez asked about the security access lane around the building and if it needs to be paved.
Mr. Levi stated it will likely be paved.

Ms. Twomey asked about the cafeteria and if the students on the second floor can look into the
cafeteria? And if noise would travel into the classrooms that abut the cafeteria?

SBRC Meeting Minutes — August 26, 2024



Mr. Levi stated it will not be open from the second floor into the cafeteria, it is a solid wall.

Ms. DeStafano about why the second grade is on the second floor and not also on the first floor?
Ms. Hermesch stated that the first and second grades mirror each other in design so the
construction is less complicated. Also, that it creates a “lower” school on that half of the building
and an “upper” school on the other half of the building.

Mr. Langmead asked if there is a PTO storage room in the building?

Mr. Levi stated there is not.

Ms. Rosenthal stated the question about the second grade being on the second floor was more
about the educational impact and they should review the potential for moving the second grade to
the first floor during the next phase of design. She also asked what space the after-care program has
and if they will have storage and/or an office.

Mr. Tocci stated that those spaces are not currently in the program.

Discussion on Project Budget and Review of 3011 spreadsheet:

Mr. Lemieux provided a summary of the 3011-budget form required by the MSBA. There are two
provided this evening, one includes the cost for adding synthetic turf, the other includes the cost for
grass fields. He noted the construction costs in the budget are based on the schematic plans
provided by JLA and the reconciled cost estimates from two different estimators based on those
plans. He also noted the number on the 3011-budget is what generates the total project budget that
is approved by the MSBA and will be brought to Town Meeting and will be the final budget for the
project. Mr. Lemieux noted the budget includes PV panels on the roof, added neighborhood
improvements, and geothermal heating. He noted the budget includes all the hard costs and soft
costs for the entire project.

Mr. Lemieux walked the SBRC through the 3011 budget, how it works, and what the final project
totals are at the bottom. He noted these are still draft budgets and will be adjusted based on
conversations and decisions made tonight. He also reviewed the MSBA reimbursement and their
caps on what they will reimburse to the town.

Mr. Tocci noted that the SBRC decided to make the neighborhood improvements part of the project
budget even though the project ends at the edge of the property line.

Mr. Heffernan stated the added scope includes: Paving on Cedar Street, paving on Shiretown and
Circuit Streets as well. They then reduced the scope to include paving on just the streets that are
adjacent to the school (Cedar and Madison). He noted they also want to include granite curbs on
Madison Street and not just asphalt berms. He noted the large cost is in the granite curbing so he
wants to focus on the sidewalks immediately abutting the school.

The SBRC discussed the pros and cons of the added work on the adjacent streets. The project owns
the asphalt curbing, granite curbing, and sidewalks that are on the Oakdale Property along Cedar
Street and Madison Street. Any additional sidewalk, curbing, and paving work is above and beyond
the “base” scope of the project. The current $3.5 million estimate includes the larger scope inclusive
of Cedar, Madison, Circuit, and Shiretown (as shown on the plan on screen). The cost will be
reduced if the scope is reduced to just Madison and Cedar (as shown on a separate plan on screen).

SBRC Meeting Minutes — August 26, 2024



Mr. Acosta asked if the design of the added work falls under JLA or if the design can fall under the
DPW?

Mr. Lemieux stated if it’s part of the project it makes sense to have the design done with the project
team but that can be discussed further with the CM.

Mr. Gonzalez clarified that there is already a sidewalk on the school side of Cedar Street as part of
the project. And the added work includes paving on Cedar Street but not a sidewalk/curb on the
opposite of Cedar and no speed bumps.

Mr. Heffernan confirmed.

Mr. Lemieux noted that discussion also needs to be had with the planning board.

Ms. Twomey is asking who is paying for the added street work? The schools? The Town?

Mr. Heffernan stated it will be included as part of the debt exclusion ask as part of the project.

The SBRC discussed the granite curbing along Madison Street and how it affects parking and the
width of the driving area on Madison. It was noted that if a curbed sidewalk is added to both sides
of Madison Street, then people cannot park on the street as they currently do and the residents may
not like that. The SBRC also discussed the possibility of creating traffic rules for certain hours to
mitigate the parking on Madison Street.

Mr. Lemieux noted that the design for this additional work has not been completed and there is
much more work to be done.

Ms. Rosenthal stated it is important to have the cost for this work included in the project and it will
be revisited during design development to finalize scope and extent of work.

Mr. Heffernan stated if the work is removed from the project the roads will be patched and not
nicely paved.

Mr. Tocci stated the SBRC has received a lot of feedback about traffic and traffic mitigation around
the school during this process and he thinks these improvements should be included in the project
budget.

Mr. Lemieux noted this work can be included in the budget as an Alternate and the SBRC can include
it at bid time if they decide to do so. He also noted that this work is some of the last work to be done
so if there is contingency left at the end of the project the SBRC can decide to use that money to do
some of these improvements or add to the neighborhood improvements.

Ms. MacDonald Briggs asked what it would cost to do the paving only along Madison and Cedar?
Mr. Lemieux stated the cost for the added work can also be carried as an “excluded alternate” which
means the town will only proceed with the work if they have enough bid savings to do so. The other
way is to carry it in the total project budget as an alternate.

Mr. Gray stated the milling and paving for the sections of Madison Street and Cedar Street only is
roughly $300,000.

Mr. Lemieux noted there are soft costs on top of that $300,000 so it would be about $400,000 total
to add it to the budget.

The SBRC continues discussion on the paving, sidewalks, curbing along Madison Street and what
they would like to see included in the budget and how it will affect the neighbors, school, and traffic.
The SBRC has noted that they have plenty of time after this meeting and submitting the SD Report
to design the work and discuss it further with other town departments. They also discussed how the

4
SBRC Meeting Minutes — August 26, 2024



sidewalk work affects the neighbors’ yards and driveways and how they are coordinated with the
new curbs and sidewalks.

Ms. Ellis read the public comments:

Ms. Anderson stated It is very important to me that this project moves forward. With the fact that
we are relying on a town vote, she worries about anything that could be perceived as unnecessary
or an extravagance. For this reason, she doesn’t know if adding turf to the project is the right choice.

Ms. Porter stated | suggest you talk about traffic calming elements rather than “speed bumps.”
Speed bumps are a traffic calming element but often their unintended consequences are worse than
other traffic calming strategies. She stated she does not speak for the Planning board — she is just
one member. But as one member on this site | would consider the sidewalks and curbing a critical
part of the site circulation, at least for the length of Madison in white on the map shown now. Great
points by Erin. She would suggest including it in the budget knowing that planning board and DPW
/engineering can work out a plan that works for the site, which prioritizes safety for pedestrians and
vehicles, preserves parking for abutters, and calms traffic where cars would be likely to drive in an
unsafe manner. If site review doesn’t end up recommending these changes they won’t be
recommended.

Mr. Alexander asked if anyone addressed the height difference between Maidson Street and the
area by the roundabout/bus drop-off? Will there be a wall?
Mr. Levi stated there will not be a wall.

MOTION: to remove the $3.7 million from the budget and add back $500,000 for the paving
work on Madison Street and Cedar Street made by Mr. Heffernan.

*Further discussion by SBRC about the cost of the work*

AMENDED MOTION: to include applicable contingency percentages.

Mr. Lemieux noted those are included in the $500,000 estimated cost already.
SECOND: by Ms. MacDonald Briggs

Vote 5-2-0. Motion passes.

Turf Field Discussion:
Mr. Lemieux noted that the estimators provided a cost to change from an irrigated grass field to a
turf field, the cost is approximately $876,000 upcharge to go with turf fields.

Mr. Walsh stated the fields should be turf, and if it is grass who maintains the fields? The school or
the Rec department?

Ms. Gallant asked how much a turf field saves on maintenance and what is the cost for replacement
down the line?

Ms. MacDonald Briggs confirmed that Parks and Rec are in favor of turf fields.

Ms. Murphy asked for the design team to provide some information about the health and safety of
using turf and also the environmental impacts.

SBRC Meeting Minutes — August 26, 2024



**Discussion on irrigation, use of well water vs. school water, and if it would have impacts to the
schools. The cost for water consumption is estimated to be $1,000 per month. The wells at other
fields often break and require annual servicing. It was noted there is also costs for maintenance of
the turf fields. It was also noted that the turf fields get more use because they can be used
regardless of the weather conditions unlike grass fields.

Mr. Langmead noted we have the opportunity to service multiple sports year-round and the fields
will be used and it benefits the entire Dedham community.

Ms. Rosenthal asked if there will still be a water line out to the field?

Mr. Haffner noted they do not have water lines to other turf fields.

Mr. Lemieux stated that a hose connection can be added for minimal cost.

MOTION: to approve the inclusion of a turf field instead of grass fields by Ms. MacDonald Briggs.
SECOND: by Mr. Acosta
Vote 6-0-1. Ms. Boles Welsh abstains.

Vote to Approve the SD Submission to the MSBA:
MOTION: Motion to approve the estimated construction cost and total estimated project
budget as presented for a 360-student school on the Oakdale site, subject to any minor
modifications through the Chair or Vice Chair of the SBRC, and to authorize the Owner's Project
Manager to submit the Schematic Design Report to the MSBA for its consideration at their
Board Meeting made by Ms. MacDonald Briggs.
SECOND: by Mr. Heffernan

Mr. Tocci asked for any discussion.

Ms. Boles Welsh asked what components will be fixed and what will continue to be part of

discussions after this vote?

Mr. Levi stated this fixes the cost and scope of the project. The overall layout of the building and

the general massing and elevations are fixed. The next phase is Design Development and they

will look into detail at all the layouts and details of each individual room and space of the

building.

Mr. Lemieux noted that the MSBA will receive additional submissions along the way during

Design Development and Construction Documents. He noted you cannot change program at this

point but interior changes can still take place. Any additional square footage added will not be

reimbursed at all by the MSBA.

Ms. Boles Welsh asked what the MSBA can change as far as design.

Mr. Lemieux stated the MSBA does not change the design and they have already asked question

about the program and approved it.

Mr. Tocci asked why the cost isn’t that different from the cost for the previous project?

Mr. Lemieux stated the previous PSR for the combined school was about $113 million for a

103,000 SF School with a 25% reimbursement which was about $84million to be paid by the

town. He noted that the PSR is a very rough estimate without a real design. The SD last year was

at about $120 million with a reimbursement of 29% before the project was paused and it was

never submitted. The SD now is about $110 million with a town share of $81 million and a

reimbursement rate of about 26%. He also noted that the project now includes turf and solar

panels and additional paving. And it was about a year ago so there is 5% escalation added to the
6

SBRC Meeting Minutes — August 26, 2024



project as well. He also noted the square footage that was removed is the least expensive
square footage. The gym is still there, the cafeteria, media center, STEM room, etc. are still
there.

VOTE: 7-0-0. Motion passes unanimously.

The School Committee takes their vote on accepting the recommendation from the SBRC for
submission of the SD report.

Mr. Polito asked about the ineligible square footage and why the square footage is so high.

Mr. Lemieux stated that the MSBA deeming something ineligible doesn’t mean it is unnecessary.
The educators liked the breakout spaces so they are included in the project.

Mr. Gray stated the larger gym is part of that space and it was approved by the SBRC to make it a
better community asset. He also noted that the quiet dining is also one of those spaces but again
the educators like and want that space. He noted the MSBA agrees with these spaces but they are
outside of the standard template and therefore non-reimbursable.

Mr. Polito noted if there is a way to pare some of these spaces down to bring the price down
because the town has more school projects to do after this one. He noted he is unsure how that
would be done at this point but wanted to ask the question.

Mr. Langmead noted that the critical thing to remember is that when this project is complete, 65%
of the Dedham students will be in modern facilities and this will be a fully accessible building with
great fields. It’s the best deal we have and he plans to vote for and advocate for it over the next few
months.

The School Committee votes on the recommendation and the motion passes.

** The School Committee closes their meeting.

Town Meeting Warrant Article Discussion:

Mr. Tocci noted there are two warrant articles up for discussion, the first is to join the Planning
Board in expanding the SBRC membership by one planning board member and another member,
who he thinks should be the school superintendent, and then by up to two additional members.
Ms. Porter stated the planning board would like to have a joint article for town meeting and noted
they would need a draft article by next Friday.

MOTION: to join the planning board in creating a town meeting article to increase the SBRC
committee by (1) planning board seat, (1) School Superintendent seat and up to (2) more seats
as part of a town meeting warrant article by John Tocci.

SECOND: by Mr. Acosta.

Mr. Tocci asked for any discussion.

Ms. MacDonald Briggs noted that at some point years ago via Town Meeting there were members
removed from the SBRC. She thinks that they should entertain adding the Town Manger as well.
Discussion on adding immediate abutters to the SBRC and if they would be designated by the Town
Moderator. It was noted that abutters may not be able to participate in voting from an ethics
standpoint and they should get clarification on that. There is also discussion on not capping the
number of members to be added to 4.

Mr. Acosta stated he is in favor of growing the committee and is open to who else should be added
and they have time to figure it out after the draft warrant is submitted.

SBRC Meeting Minutes — August 26, 2024



Ms. Porter agreed and stated they can discuss the committee formulation in the final warrant
article.

Mr. Heffernan stated his concern that the more people are added via the warrant the less likely it is
to pass. He wants everyone to keep in mind what we want to accomplish which originally was to
bring a planning board member on board.

Ms. Boles Welsh asked for clarification from Town Council on the legal definition of an abutter
because she would like one of the at large seats to go to a neighbor.

MOTION AMENDED: Motion to join the planning board in submitting a warrant article to
increase the membership of the SBRC committee by at least two members, one of which is a
planning board member and the other is the School Superintendent seat and to designate (2)
Stephen Acosta and John Tocci to work with the planning board to draft the warrant language
made by Mr. Tocci.

SECOND: by Ms. MacDonald Briggs

VOTE: 7-0-0. Motion passes unanimously.

Mr. Tocci stated the next vote is to approve submission of the warrant article for Tall Fall Meeting.
MOTION: Motion to approve the warrant language for submission for the Fall Town Meeting by
Ms. Boles Welsh. Warrant Language as follows: To see if the Town will vote to appropriate,
borrow or transfer from available funds, an amount of money to be expended under the
direction of the Dedham School Building Rehabilitation Commission, not to exceed <insert the
most recent number>, for the Oakdale Elementary Building Project, Oakdale Elementary School,
147 Cedar Street, Dedham at Cedar Street and Madison Street to replace the existing Oakdale
Elementary School by constructing a new school facility on the property and demolishing the
existing structure, and for which the Town may be eligible for a school construction grant from
the Massachusetts School Building Authority (“MSBA”). The Town acknowledges that the
MSBA's grant program is a non-entitlement, discretionary program based on need, as
determined by the MSBA, and any project costs the Town incurs in excess of any grant approved
by and received from the MSBA shall be the sole responsibility of the Town. Any grant that the
Town may receive from the MSBA for the Project shall not exceed the lesser of (1) 47.21 percent
( %) of eligible, approved project costs, as determined by the MSBA, or (2) the total maximum
grant amount determined by the MSBA.

SECOND: by Mr. Tocci
VOTE: 7-0-0. Motion passes unanimously

Mr. Tocci noted the next meetings: September 9, 2024, and September 23, 2024.
Public Comment:

Mr. Pepoli stated he has met with an SBRC member and it was a refreshing discussion. He then
stated he has some comprise actions he requests of the SBRC as follows:

1) Move the drop-off and parking to the other side of the site (the front side). While we all like
fields, this is a school project and not a parks and rec project (and as we previously learned from a
school committee member, when trying to improve the Greenlodge field...fields at schools are play
fields, not sports fields)...the need for a larger green space /field should not drive the neighborhood

SBRC Meeting Minutes — August 26, 2024



changing action of putting parking and the drop off line on the Madison side of the property.
Sidewalks and curbing is not going to cut it.

2) Keep the general layout of the school but put the vehicular entrance and exit to the school on
Cedar Street. This will make it less likely parents will drive down Madison.

3) On the same note - Have the main entrance of the building face cedar, at the end of the building
facing Cedar where the new pick-up and drop of area will be. (This again gives the impression the
front of the school is on Cedar and not Madison)

4) Make a public commitment at your next meeting, that you will continue to try and simplify the
design of the building (shape, materials, etc.) in an attempt to lower costs. Yes, we want the school
to be beautiful...but we really need to ensure we are not going over the top. The baseline should be
a well constructed building, that will have a low level of required R&M, and provides a safe/healthy
learning environment. Lots of angles, glass and dissimilar materials all add to cost and down the line
more maintenance.

5) And last, on costs, provide a detailed, and digestible summary (that can be distributed to the
town) as to why this school, is only +/-54M dollars less that a school that was designed to
accommodate 50% more students (or whatever the delta is now based on the presentation last
night). You can’t just say...well costs have gone up; you can’t just blame inflation (as all we hear,
inflation is slowing by the current administration). When spending $110M these broad excuses do
not cut it. If you want town meeting, and the residents of this town to take you and the cost
seriously, we need a full line of sight as to this question. Show the line-item budget of the
consolidated school, and then show it compared to the standalone school, discuss the line items
(why some things moved, and why some do not). To the common resident who has not been
following the whole process...this cost is illogical.

So in conclusion and discussed last night....ask yourself this...are you willing to make commitments
to the changes above, to show you are willing to find common ground with the opposing abutters
and other Dedham neighbors who do not support this iteration of the project. Are you willing to
show you are truly acting after listening...to improve the probability of this much needed project
being passed...or do you want to show that it is truly the SBRC that is the roadblock here to getting
this done, because as much as you feel this is a done deal...well how did that go with your
consolidated school. These are not demands, these are not threats...these are actional able items
that can be done to meet in the middle and finally move this mutually forward.

Ms. Ellis read some comments.

Ms. Campbell Hegarty asked Why is the state’s reimbursement percentage lowered from 30% to
26%7?

Mr. Tocci stated they conservatively estimated 25% throughout the project and it’s actually at 27%
now.

An Anonymous posted stated turf fields should not be used for grades 1-5, grass fields should be
fine and saves money.

SBRC Meeting Minutes — August 26, 2024



Mr. Reidy stated he is an abutter who strongly supports the new school. He commended the SBRC
and School Committee for all their hard work. He stated there are some abutters concerned with
the location of the new building however locating the school where it is currently is much more
expensive. He wants to stress that this is a project that replaces a building that is over 100 years old
and will provide a better experience for students and staff. He stated there is no perfect plan but
there is no better plan and the schools must be replaced. He asked if the comments from the prior
commented will be implemented and he hopes that the opposition of this project will stop opposing
the project because the only ones who that hurts are the students.

8. Adjournment:
Mr. Tocci requested a motion to adjourn.

MOTION: to adjourn by Mr. Acosta.
SECOND: by Mr. Gonzalez

Vote to Adjourn - Unanimous
Meeting Adjourned at 10:10 pm.

Attachments:
JLA Presentation
3011 Budgets

10
SBRC Meeting Minutes — August 26, 2024



